
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

 
Monday, January 25, 2016 

6:15 P.M. 
 

Village Hall Board Room 
40 East Center Avenue 

 
A G E N D A 

 
I. Call To Order 
 
II. Roll Call 

 
III. Non-Agenda Items and Visitors (Public Comment) 

 
The Committee-of-the-Whole allocates fifteen (15) minutes during this item for those 
individuals who would like the opportunity to address the Committee-of-the-Whole on any 
matter not listed on the agenda.  Each person addressing the Committee-of-the-Whole is 
asked to limit their comments to a maximum of three (3) minutes. 

 
IV. General Business  

 
The Committee-of-the-Whole will entertain requests from anyone present to modify the order 
of business to be conducted. 

 
i. Consideration of the Minutes from the December 14, 2015 Committee-of-the-Whole 

Meeting 
 

ii. Continued Discussion Regarding Outdoor Construction and Property Maintenance 
Regulations 

 
V. Adjournment 

 
R. Drew Irvin 
Village Administrator 

 
The Village of Lake Bluff is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities 
who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this 
meeting, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact R. Drew Irvin at 234-
0774 or TDD number 234-2153 promptly to allow the Village of Lake Bluff to make reasonable accommodations. 



1 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE MEETING 

DECEMBER 14, 2015 
DRAFT MINUTES OF MEETING 

 
The Village of Lake Bluff Board of Trustees met as a Committee-of-the-Whole (COW) in the Village Hall 
Board Room (40 East Center Avenue) on Monday, December 14, 2015.  Village President O’Hara called the 
meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. and Village Clerk Aaron Towle called the roll and announced the following 
were present: 
 
Village President:  Kathleen O’Hara 
 
Trustees:   Barbara Ankenman 
    Mark Dewart 

Eric Grenier 
    John Josephitis 
    William Meyer     
 
Absent:    Steve Christensen, Village Trustee 
    Peter Friedman, Village Attorney 
 
Also Present:   Aaron Towle, Village Clerk 
    Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 

David Belmonte, Chief of Police  
Jeff Hansen, Village Engineer 
Michael Croak, Building Codes Supervisor 
Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 

Non-Agenda Items and Visitors 
President O’Hara stated the COW allocates 15 minutes for those individuals who would like the opportunity 
to address the COW on any matter not listed on the agenda.  

 
There were no requests to address the COW. 
 
Consideration of the Minutes from the November 23, 2015 Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting 
Trustee Dewart moved to approve the November 23, 2015 COW Meeting Minutes as presented. Trustee 
Grenier seconded the motion. The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 
Continued Discussion Regarding Outdoor Construction and Property Maintenance Regulations 
Village Administrator Drew Irvin reported on August 24, 2015 the COW discussed complaints received by 
the Village from time to time regarding outdoor work (lawn mowing and other landscaping activities) that 
produces offensive noises in the early morning and evening hours.  Historically, the Village has managed 
these complaints by working with the contractors/property owners and by using the current permitted 
construction times for regulatory purposes.  The COW conversations regarding this topic were continued to 
the September 14th meeting where a consensus was reached on the following: 
 

 No change should be made to the existing permissible construction hours, 
 Further regulations for gas and electric powered landscape equipment during May 15 to the end of 

September to Monday-Friday 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. and on weekends/holidays from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. 
should be explored, 

 Leaf blowers should be permitted to operate until 6 p.m.,  



Committee-of-the-Whole 
Meeting Minutes – 12/14/15 
 

2 

 Snow blowers/shoveling activities should be exempt from regulations, and  
 Village residents completing outdoor maintenance activities should have more flexibility to complete 

outdoor property maintenance activities (permission to work later in the evening). 
 

Village Administrator Irvin stated an ordinance reflecting these changes in policy was drafted and shared 
with three local landscape companies.  Contractors indicated they can accommodate extending hours for leaf 
blowers to 6:00 p.m.  In regards to limiting the use of powered landscape equipment in the same manner as 
permitted leaf blowers, contractors felt the change would result in more noise for longer periods of time and 
be highly inefficient for them to operate and ultimately, increasing costs to customers.  The contractors felt it 
made sense to exempt snow removal equipment and equipment used by property owners on their own 
property.  Village Administrator Irvin reported one local landscape contractor’s primary concern was a desire 
for the Village to license all landscape contractors and require proof of insurance as done by other 
Northshore communities. 
 
Trustee Dewart stated any increase in enforcement may be perceived as a barrier to entry.  He inquired if the 
same regulations apply to snow plow services.  A discussion ensued. 
 
Trustee Ankenman expressed concern with the Village efficiently ensuring insurance is kept current 
throughout a licensing period. 
 
Trustee Dewart expressed his agreement with Trustee Ankenman about further understanding the 
administrative responsibilities that will be dedicated to this function. 
 
Trustee Grenier stated he is most concerned with the noise levels on weekends and suggested a 9:00 a.m. 
start time on weekends and holidays. 
 
Trustee Josephitis expressed his agreement with the other Trustees and inquired of the license requirements 
for Lake Forest and Green Oaks. 
 
Trustee Meyer expressed his preference to license landscape contractors.  He asked how much insurance is 
required and how do other municipalities administer the program. 
 
Village Administrator Irvin stated Staff will review license and insurance regulations and present the 
information to the COW at a future meeting. 
 
Adjournment 
As no further business came before the COW, Trustee Meyer moved to adjourn the meeting. Trustee 
Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote and the meeting adjourned at 
6:48 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,    
 
 
___________________________    
R. Drew Irvin       
Village Administrator  
 



  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  January 20, 2016      
 
To:  President O’Hara and Members of the Committee of the Whole  
  
From: Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
  Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
  Franco Bottalico, Administrative Intern 

 
Subject: Regulations Regarding Outdoor Construction and Property Maintenance Activities     
 
On August 24, 2015 the Committee of the Whole (“COW”) discussed that the Village receives complaints from 
time to time regarding outdoor work (lawn mowing and other landscaping activities) that produces offensive 
noises in the early morning or evening.  Historically, the Village has managed these complaints by working 
with the contractors/property owners and by using the current permitted construction times for regulatory 
purposes.  As you will recall, COW conversations regarding this topic were continued to the September 14th 
meeting where, after a long discussion, a consensus was reached on the following: 

 No change should be made to the existing permissible construction hours, 
 Further regulations for gas and electric powered landscape equipment during May 15 to the end of 

September to Monday-Friday 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. and on weekends/holidays from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. should be 
explored, 

 Leaf blowers should be permitted to operate until 6 p.m.,  
 Snow blowers/shoveling activities should be exempt from regulations, and  
 Village residents completing outdoor maintenance activities should have more flexibility to complete 

outdoor property maintenance activities (permission to work later in the evening). 
An ordinance reflecting these changes in policy was drafted and shared with three local landscape companies.  
The table below provides a summary of their comments. 
 
# Possible Change Landscape Contractor Comments 
1 Extending permitted leaf blower hours to 6:00 

p.m. throughout the year 
Can make this work. Not a big deal. 

 
Already trying to manage neighbor concerns so not 

concerned with this change. 
2 Limiting the use of powered landscape equipment 

in the same manner as permitted leaf blowers (no 
more than one piece of powered equipment at a 

time) 

Will result in more noise for longer periods of time. 
 

Highly inefficient, and will increase costs to 
customers. 

 
 

3 Exempting snow removal equipment and 
equipment used by property owners on their own 

property (no impact) 

Makes sense 

 
Citing safety, equalization of the “playing field,” and liability, one local landscape contractor’s primary concern 
was a desire for the Village to license all landscape contractors and require proof of insurance as other 
northshore communities have done. 



  

 

The comments from the local landscape companies were reviewed with the COW on December 14th.  Following 
its further conversation the COW continued the meeting to allow time for staff to further research common 
administrative duties and insurance requirements used by other comparable communities with their landscape 
registration program. 
 
Village Staff anticipates the COW discussing the various activities and related regulations, as well as the 
Contractor comments during the upcoming meeting. 
 
Attachments: 

1. August 24 & September 14, 2015 COW Meeting Minutes; 
2. Summary of North Shore Regulations Regarding Outdoor Construction and Property Maintenance 

Activities; 
3. Summary of Landscaper Registration Program Requirements from Lake Forest, Highland Park and 

Glencoe; 
4. Clean and Red-line Versions of Revisions to the Landscape/Leaf Blower Operations; and 
5. Lake Forest Landscape Contractor Registration Application.  

 
 






































